

Regular Meeting Minutes March 13, 2024

Chairman Fialka called the regular meeting to order at 7:00PM. Present were Commissioners Caplinger, Collins, Saylor, Sargent, Guerrero and Kirkpatrick. Commissioners Doherty was excused. Commissioner Hamm was absent. Youth Advisor Sarahi Gutierrez was present. Staff in attendance included Planning Director Clint Spencer, City Attorney Richard Tovey, and Planning Assistant Heather La Beau.

<u>Minutes</u>

Commissioner Caplinger moved, and Commissioner Collins seconded to approve the minutes of the February 14, 2024, regular meeting. Motion passed.

Subdivision Fieldstone Crossing Phase 2 Hermiston School District 8R 4N2815CA Tax Lot 1300-1653 SW 9th St

Planning Director Spencer presented the staff report. This preliminary plat proposes to create eleven residential lots around a single cul-de-sac and a 5.5 acre lot for future school use or additional residences. These new lots will continue to be built by students in the vocational training program.

Testimony

Anthony Bonifer, Wenaha project manager 125 SE Court Ave Ste A Pendleton OR 97801- Mr. Bonifer is representing the Hermiston School District and is available to answer any questions along with Trevor Bennett from PBS.

Dr. Tricia Mooney, Superintendent Hermiston School District 1055 W Judith PI- The 10th home is currently being built in the Fieldstone Crossing subdivision and there is one vacant lot remaining. They plan to have the next phase platted to avoid any delays in the building program. Stanfield and Umatilla districts are included in the program. Students submit to an application process, class prerequisites, and two period time commitment. A second student home builder program teacher has been added this year, however it is unlikely they will increase output to two homes a year anytime soon.

Findings of Fact

Chapter 94: Streets and Sidewalks

One new street is proposed on the preliminary plat. The applicant proposes a new east-west cul-de-sac extending eastward from SW 9th St. This new east-west cul-de-sac shall be designated as SW Fieldstone Ct on the final plat.

Chapter 154: Subdivisions

Design Standards

154.15 Relation to Adjoining Street System.

The preliminary plat is adjacent to SW 9th Street. One new street is proposed. A new cul-de-sac extending east from SW 9th St is proposed. The new cul-de-sac does not exceed 400 feet in length. Union Pacific Railroad tracks forms the east boundary of Lot 12, which is an oversized lot reserved for future development. Lot 12 remains vacant land for the school's future use. Further extension of this street is impractical. No other connections to the existing street network are proposed.

154.16 Street and Alley Width.



Regular Meeting Minutes March 13, 2024

All streets have a width of at least 50 feet which meets the minimum requirement for local residential streets. The proposed cul-de-sac has a radius of over 50'. No new alleys are proposed as part of the preliminary plat. The street design standards are satisfied.

154.17 Easements.

Easements of 10 feet in width are provided on all street frontages. These easements are public utility easements that accommodate storm drainage, utilities, and sidewalks.

154.18 Blocks.

There are no blocks proposed as part of the subdivision proposal. City standards require a maximum block length of 600 feet. This development will have a 100-foot block length.

<u>154.19 Lots</u>.

All the proposed lots will make desirable building sites properly related to topography as required by §154.19 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. Apart from lots 5, 6, and 7, all the proposed lots are at least 60 feet wide and 80 feet deep. Lots 5, 6, and 7 are all less than 60 feet wide at the street line but meet the 60-foot width requirement at the building line as required by 154.19(A) and have at least 25 feet of street frontage as required by 157.025(C)(3). All the proposed lots exceed the minimum lot size of 8,000 square feet in the R-1 zone. Where possible, all side lot lines are at right angles or are radial to street lines. There are two corner lots in the proposed development, each of which have sufficient width and depth to allow the establishment of front building lines on both local residential street frontages. Lots 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11 are serviced by the development's local street network and also have frontage on W Gettman Road. To preserve the functionality of traffic movements on W Gettman Road, staff recommends the planning commission require the applicant to place a notation on the final plat stating that Lots 7,8,9,10, and 11 shall not access W Gettman Road.

154.20 Character of Development.

Staff understands that the applicant intends to market the subdivision as a single-family development. The lot sizes proposed for the development exceed the minimum size permitted in the R-1 zone for single-family dwellings. Uses permitted in the R-1 zone are listed in §157.025 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.

154.21 Parks, School Sites and the Like

The comprehensive plan and parks master plan do not indicate a need for any parks or schools in the vicinity of the proposed development. There are two existing schools in the neighborhood.

Preliminary Plat

The preliminary plat contains most of the information required by 154.35 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.

The following items are not included with the preliminary plat:

(a) Grades and profiles of proposed streets



Regular Meeting Minutes March 13, 2024

The above information must be included unless waived by the planning commission. Profiles for the streets will be required as part of the civil drawing review process or final plat process. Staff recommends that the planning commission waive the required information for the preliminary plat but require it for civil drawing submission.

Required Minimum Improvements

154.60 Permanent Markers.

All subdivisions shall be surveyed in accordance with ORS 92.050 through 92.080. The preliminary plat has been surveyed.

154.61 General Improvements.

As a condition of approval for the final plat, the city will require the installation of grading, storm drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalks, street paving and all service utilities. All improvements must comply with the Public Works Department standard plans and specifications manual. As a condition of approval, the planning commission shall require the applicant to sign an improvement agreement with the city agreeing to specific development conditions. In lieu of completion of such work, the City may accept a Letter of Credit in an amount and conditions to be specified.

W Gettman Road is partially improved with curb and gutter for approximately 460 feet along the development site. W Gettman Road shall have improvements in the form of sidewalk, curb, gutter, drainage improvements, and infill paving for 600 feet along the area of the site proposed for development. SW 9th St is fully improved along the entire frontage adjacent to the site.

Final design approval of all improvements must be obtained from the city engineer. Streetlights must also be installed at the applicant's cost. Once installed, the City will assume the monthly service charges.

154.62 Water Lines.

Each lot is planned for connection to the municipal water supply. Water system extensions and fire hydrant locations must be approved by the city engineer. The development will be serviced by the existing water improvements in SW 9th Street. Water improvements in W Gettman Road terminate at the end of the existing paving improvement. As a condition of approval, the city will require the extension of a water main to the east line of Lot 7 in W Gettman Road, a distance of approximately 140 feet.

154.63 Sanitary Sewer System.

Each lot is planned for connection to the sanitary sewer system. The sewer layout must be approved by DEQ, the city sewer superintendent and the city engineer. The development will be serviced by the existing sewer improvements in SW 9th Street. Sewer improvements in W Gettman Road terminate at the end of the existing paving improvement. As a condition of approval, the city will require the extension of a sewer main to the east line of Lot 7 in W Gettman Road, a distance of approximately 140 feet.

154.64 Drainage.

All necessary facilities shall be installed sufficient to prevent the collection of surface water in any low spot and to maintain any natural water course.

154.65 Sidewalks.



Regular Meeting Minutes March 13, 2024

The applicant shall install sidewalks along all street frontages of all lots as required by the improvement agreement.

154.66 Bikeways.

The City of Hermiston Transportation System Plan does not call for any bikeways in this area.

Chapter 157: Zoning

157.025 Low Density Residential Zone (R-1)

All the proposed lots are created in conformance with the requirements of the R-1 zone. All the proposed lots exceed the minimum lot size of 8,000 square feet. Apart from lots 5, 6, and 7, all the proposed lots are at least 60 feet wide and 80 feet deep. Lots 5, 6, and 7 are all less than 60 feet wide at the street line but meet the 60-foot width requirement at the building line as required by 154.19(A), and 25-foot minimum street frontage requirement in 157.025(C)(3).

Conditions of Approval

- 1. Applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District prior to final plat approval. Applicant should be aware that the City of Hermiston will not sign the final plat until the irrigation district has been satisfied and signs the final plat.
- 2. Applicant must sign an improvement agreement and shall install grading, storm drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalks, street paving, and all service utilities for this development. All improvements for each phase shall comply with city standards and specifications and shall receive final approval from the city engineer.
- 3. Streetlights shall be installed at the applicant's cost. Once installed, the City will assume the monthly service charges.
- 4. Applicant shall comply with all provisions of 92.12 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances (relating to the control of blowing dust) during all phases of construction.
- 5. All streets shall be designated in accordance with §94.22 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances as detailed in the findings of fact for Chapter 94. The new cul-de-sac shall be labeled as SW Fieldstone Ct on the final plat.
- 6. Applicant shall improve W Gettman Road frontage of the property with sidewalk to the end of the existing curb and gutter (a distance of approximately 460 feet), and with curb, gutter, sidewalk, drainage improvements, and paving improvements to minor collector status from the terminus of existing curb and gutter to the east end of the development site (a distance of approximately 140 feet).
- 7. Water and sewer mains shall be extended in W Gettman Road from their current terminus at the paving/chip seal boundary to the east line of Lot 7, a distance of approximately 140 feet.
- 8. Easements of at least 10' shall be provided along all street frontages.



Regular Meeting Minutes March 13, 2024

9. A notation shall be placed on the plat stating Lots 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 shall not establish driveways onto W Gettman Road.

Commissioner Saylor moved, and Commissioner Kirkpatrick seconded to make the project file a part of the record. Motion passed. Commissioner Kirkpatrick moved, and Commissioner Collins seconded to adopt findings of fact. Motion passed. Commissioner Saylor moved, and Commissioner Sargent seconded to impose the conditions of approval. Motion passed. Commissioner Saylor moved and Commissioner Caplinger seconded to recommend approval of the preliminary plat with the conditions of approval. Motion passed.

Planner Comments and Unscheduled Communication

- Council approval of Hermiston Home Works, Inc comprehensive plan amendment and annexation
- Statement of Economic Interest forms due April 15
- Former Commissioner Rebman will serve as a volunteer for the upcomimng transportation planning projects

Updates were given on the following projects:

- North Hermiston Urban Renewal project
- SE 2nd St Gateway Improvements
- South Hermiston Industrial Park
- UGB Expansion
- GRATE (W Gettman Ave extension)

<u>Adjournment</u>

Chairman Fialka adjourned the meeting at 7:30PM.